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The Biddle House, in northern St. Georges Hundred, is situated on a slight rise 
of ground overlooking the junction of two eighteenth-century roads known as the 
King's Highway (today, Route 13) and the Port Penn road (Route 2). By the middle 
of the nineteenth century this road junction was familiarly known as Biddle's 
Corner, after the owner of the sole farmhouse in the immediate vicinity. Farming 
has been the primary occupation for the inhabitants of this part of New Castle 
County since the late eighteenth century and to this day most of the lands are 
under active cultivation.

The Biddle House has undergone five distinct periods of growth and in the process 
has grown from a one-room-plan plank house to the extended rambling two-story 
structure that it is today.

The earliest portion of the Biddle House was most probably built during the last 
quarter of the eighteenth century. Basically, it was a simple, one-room-plan 
dwelling built of heavy sawn plank with full dovetailed corners. The planks are 
four inches thick, one foot wide, and in some instances are eighteen feet long, 
though most are shorter. Pins set vertically into the horizontal butt joints 
secure the planks from movement. Strands of oakum are driven between the planks 
for additional weatherproofing of the joints. The weatherboards which originally 
covered the planks were replaced sometime in the late 19th century. The house 
had a western gable interior end chimney with an exposed base. The foundation 
of this section is comprised of brick laid in English bond to form a full earthen 
floored cellar, at the western end of which rests a truly massive segmentally- 
arched chimney support some 10 feet wide.

On the first floor the original cavernous fireplace has been twice reduced in 
size in conjunction with later nineteenth-century expansion and modification of 
the structure. Situated on the south wall are a doorway and an opening for a 
single six-over-six sash window. The northern wall was greatly altered with the 
addition of a bowed window in the late 19th century. The attic no longer exists 
in its original location, as the roof was raised when the second story was added 
to the plank section during the third phase of the Biddle House expansion. The 
first floor ceiling joists, now lathed and plastered, were once exposed with 
beveled edges. An enclosed staircase, added during the second building stage, 
flanks the right side of the chimney.

Sometime during the first quarter of the nineteenth century, the second major 
construction phase took place. Against the west gable end of the plank house 
was added a federal two-story, three-bay, nogged braced frame side hall plan 
house with a west gable interior end chimney and simple, yet sophisticated, 
detailing in the form of baseboards, chair rails, raised four panelled doors 
and a closed stringer staircase with square balusters. The exposed interior 
principal posts are covered by beaded casings. On the first floor, some of 
these details were removed in the mid-nineteenth century to accompany the third 
phase of expansion and modernization. The second story of this federal addition
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The present deteriorated condition of the Biddle House shifts it somewhat from the 
customary aesthetic notions and implications of architectural significance. However, 
it is nevertheless an important building and of great significance to an examination 
of Delaware architecture for several reasons. The plank house and nogged braced 
frame side hall house are both important individually as good examples of scarce 
architectural forms that characterized much of the housing in Delaware during the 
eighteenth and early-nineteenth centuries. The combination of these two earlier 
sections with the later Victorian wings establishes the Biddle House as an important 
architectural document that clearly illustrates within the context of a single 
structure the evolutionary development of wooden1 houses through time. The very com­ 
plexity of the Biddle House makes it an especially informative field laboratory for 
the student of architectural history.

The plank house which forms the nucleus of the Biddle House is a type once very 
prevalent throughout New Castle and Kent County. However, very few of these have 
survived in any form through to the present. It is important to note that this 
first section, though enlarged upon, still retained a large measure of utility. 
The alterations to the plank house in the wake of the serial enlargements and modi­ 
fications clearly demonstrates an aspect of early building practices wherein exist­ 
ing structural elements were modified and reused.

The nogged braced frame side hall house, the basis of the phase two enlargement, 
is another good example of a construction technique common to many early Delaware 
houses. Here, the brick nogging within the walls is of special interest as the 
Biddle House is the northernmost example discovered to date of an architectural 
practice which is more commonly encountered in lower Delaware.

Taken in its present entirety, the Biddle House shows the progression of the wooden 
house from the use of heavy plank to mortised and tenoned braced frame through to 
light timbered balloon frame. Somewhat ironically, it is the deteriorated condition 
of the house that permits a detailed study of its change through time.

During the period which runs from the date of the plank house construction to the 
last major modifications of the early 20th century, the house belonged to two 
farming families who were related by marriage, the Vandegrifts and the Biddies. 
As an artifact, this house provides important cultural evidence of how successive 
generations of a family have altered and added to their home in response to various 
changes in their social and spacial requirements.
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originally featured exposed beaded attic joists and painted vertical board room 
partitions, which were later covered with lath and plaster.

The chimney support of this section rests against the western end of the common 
bond cellar wall, but during the late nineteenth century the entire fireplace 
and chimney was removed and replaced by a brick flue for wood or coal burning 
stoves. The roof of this section has mortise and tenon rafters. A standing 
seam sheet tin roof overlies a finished split shake roof.

Phase three of the evolution of the Biddle House took place sometime in the 
mid-nineteenth century. Yet another wing was added, this time to the east gable 
end of the plank house. This section was built of balloon frame and rests on 
a stone foundation and full cellar. A brick chimney for a stove is located on 
the eastern gable end wall to the left of which is an enclosed staircase leading 
to the second floor and a staircase giving access to the cellar. At this time, 
a moulded box cornice with returns was added to the eaves to give the roof line 
of the entire house a more uniform appearance.

Late in the nineteenth century, a two-story wing was added to the Biddle House 
on the north side on facade. In addition, a square columned porch was added 
to the facade, extending around to the west gable end of the federal section. 
This was the fourth major alteration to the structure.

Early in this century a one-story, shed-roofed frame wing was added against the 
south exterior wall of the phase three, mid-nineteenth century wing. The house 
was covered in its entirety with mill-sawn cedar weatherboard around the turn 
of the century. Later in this century these weatherboards were covered over 
with a form of fiber-insulated, composition coated siding.

The house has been abandoned and is now open and subject to vandalism. As the 
primary significance of the Biddle house lies in its architectural aspects and 
is not concerned with its environment, only the ground within twenty-five feet 
of the house is included for the purposes of the nomination.
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Original core (A) c. 1780, heavy sawn plank
(A f ) root cellar

Additions (B) c. 1800-1825, mortise and
tenon braced frame with 
brick nogging.

(C) c. 1850-1860, balloon frame

(D) c. 1890, balloon frame

(E) c. 1910, balloon frame

DELAWARE DIVISION OF HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS

DRAWN BY DATE SCALE

Bernard Herman March '78 1"=10'

FILE'N-3935
TJTLE Biddle House 

Floor Plan
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